Frequently Asked Questions (And Answers) About AB4x 21 and the Elimination of the Disabled Veteran’s Business Enterprise Good Faith Effort
Overview:  

On July 28, 2009 Governor Schwarzenegger signed Assembly Bill 4x 21.  This bill eliminated the Good Faith Effort as a means for bidders to satisfy Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise (DVBE) contract participation requirements.
This FAQ reflects questions and answers concerning the change in law. 
Question #1:  Why has the State removed the Good Faith Effort (GFE)?

Answer:  The primary reasons to eliminate the GFE include:
· To eliminate costs for bidders to perform and document GFE.

· To eliminate costs to State departments relating to the review of GFE.
· To increase DVBE participation in State contracts by making participation of DVBEs a mandatory requirement when a DVBE goal is included in a solicitation.

· To enhance a State department’s ability to meet the legislatively mandated (PCC section 10115 (c)) annual 3 percent DVBE goal.

Question #2: Does AB4x 21 require all contracts to contain a minimum 3 percent Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise (DVBE) Goal?
Answer: No.  The 3 percent goal only applies to a department’s annual contract dollars.  State departments have the discretion to set an appropriate DVBE participation goal on each contract, which may be greater or less than 3 percent.  Consistent with current policies, a State department may also waive the requirement for DVBE participation for a contract.
Question #3:  If a solicitation contains a DVBE goal and the State does not receive any bids that meet the goal, can the department award the contract?

Answer :  No.  The new law only permits award to a bidder that has met the stated DVBE goal.  However, to prevent this scenario, departments have the discretion to waive the DVBE goal.  Additionally, the number of certified DVBEs has grown from just over 800 in 2007 to nearly 1200 today and continues to grow.  
Question #4:  Explain the role of the DVBE Incentive versus the DVBE contracting goal? 

Answer:  The DVBE Incentive is a separate tool that any State department may use to encourage DVBE participation.  Under the Incentive Program, bidders are not required to include DVBE participation.  However, the Incentive Program allows bidder’s price to be reduced by the amount of the incentive when award is based on low price, or receive additional points where award is based on the high score.   DGS strongly encourages departments to maximize use of the DVBE Incentive.

Question #5: Is a DVBE still required to demonstrate Commercially Useful Function (CUF)? 
Answer:  Yes.  Military and Veterans Code section 999(b)(5)(b) defines CUF and requires DVBEs to perform a CUF.  State departments will continue to evaluate DVBE participation prior to award to determine if the listed DVBE is performing a CUF.
Question #6;  What if the State department’s evaluation results indicate my listed DVBE is not performing a CUF and now I don’t meet the DVBE goal.  Can I challenge the State department’s decision?  

Answer:  Yes.  The new law does not change a bidder’s right to challenge the State department’s decision.
Question #7:  What does the GFE cost the State of California and bidders on state contracts? 
Answer: DGS estimates the State spends $3.5 million dollars annually evaluating the Good Faith Efforts submitted on contract bids.  This does not include costs incurred for processing bid protests filed on bids from over 200 State departments and DGS.  Additionally, it is estimated that bidders on state contracts spend nearly $18 million annually to perform GFE.
Question #8:  I am a small business that is bidding as a prime contractor.  Do I have to meet the DVBE goal that may be set on a given project? 

Answer:  Yes, small business status does not exempt a bidder from meeting bid requirements.
Question #9:  I am a DVBE that is bidding as a prime contractor; do I have to meet the DVBE goal that may be set on a given project? 

Answer:  Yes.  As a State certified DVBE, your participation as prime bidder will in most cases satisfy DVBE goal or Incentive requirements.  However, please review all bid documents carefully to ascertain any required goal/ incentive levels and your responsiveness to them.

Question #10:  I have a current contract with a State department now.  I was awarded the contract and did not have any DVBE participation.  Will I have to include DVBE participation on my existing contract?

Answer:  No.  AB4x 21 applies only to contracts awarded on or after July 28, 2009.  No changes are required to existing contracts.

Question #11:  I will be pursuing a multi-year contract.  In the past, DGS allowed bidders to submit DVBE Utilization Plans to meet the DVBE goal.  Will DGS still accept these plans?

Answer: Yes.  A bidder may file and seek approval of its DVBE Utilization Plan with the DGS Office of Small Business and DVBE Services.  For instructions on how to file a utilization plan go to http://www.pd.dgs.ca.gov/Publications/utilization.htm 
Question #12:  Prior to bid submittal, can a bidder request a change to an established DVBE goal, if it has evidence that the goal is too high?

Answer:  Yes.  The solicitation document will contain instructions for requesting changes.   If timely submitted, the State department will consider all information submitted, and make an adjustment to the DVBE goal if warranted.
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